
CWM TAF PUBLIC SERVICES 
BOARD JOINT OVERVIEW 

AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
10.00 am THURSDAY, 22ND NOVEMBER, 2018

ABERCYNON SPORTS CENTRE, PARC ABERCYNON, 
ABERCYNON, CF45 4UY

This Agenda has been prepared by the 
Merthyr Tydfil Democratic Services Department. Any member of the public requiring 

information should contact the department on (01685 725284) or email 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk.

Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda can be found 
on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers.

AGENDA

1. Apologies for Absence 

2. Declarations of Interest (including whipping 
declarations) 
Members are reminded of their personal 
responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 
in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government and Finance Act 1992 
relating to Council Tax, the Local Government Act 
2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members 
Code of Conduct

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


Note:

(a) Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest and

(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting 
as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave

Minutes

3. Minutes of Previous Meeting(s) 
To approve as accurate the Minutes of the 
following Meeting(s)

3.a 26/02/2018 5 - 8

3.b 06/09/2018 9 - 14

Committee Reports

4. Update on Public Service Board / Strategic 
Partnership Board 

5. Thriving Communities 
To consider the attached report 15 - 28

6. Cwm Taf JOSC - Report on Future Venues, 
Communication and Engagement 
To consider report of the Deputy Chief Executive 29 - 42

7. Work Programme 2018/19 
To consider the attached report 43 - 46

Other Items

8. Any Other Business deemed urgent by the Chair 



COMPOSITION: Councillors:
T Skinner (Merthyr Tydfil CBC) (Chair)
J Bonetto (Rhondda Cynon Taf CBC) (Vice-Chair)

Councillors:
L M Adams (Rhondda Cynon Taf CBC), J Amos 
(Merthyr Tydfil CBC), C J Barry (Merthyr Tydfil CBC), 
E George (Rhondda Cynon Taf CBC), D Isaac (Merthyr 
Tydfil CBC), M J Powell (Rhondda Cynon Taf CBC), 
D Sammon (Merthyr Tydfil CBC) and E Stephens 
(Rhondda Cynon Taf CBC)

Co-optees:
M Jehu (Local Health Board), J Jenkins (Community 
Health Council), M A Lewis (RCT Citizen 
Representative), M J Maguire (MT Citizen 
Representative) and J Roome (Ambulance Service)

together with appropriate officers

If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725284

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



CWM TAF PUBLIC SERVICES BOARD JOINT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 

COMMITTEE 

Minutes of the meeting of Cwm Taf Public Services Board Joint Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee held at the Valleys Innovation Centre, Navigation Park, 

Abercynon on Monday, 26th February, 2018 at 10 a.m. 

PRESENT 

County Borough Councillor J.Bonetto – in the Chair (Rhondda Cynon Taf) 

County Borough Councillors 

Merthyr Tydfil Rhondda Cynon Taf 
  
C.Berry E.S.Stephens 
D.Isaac G.P.Thomas 

 

Co-opted Members (Non-Executive) 

Mr.M.Jehu – Cwm Taf University Health Board 
Mr.J.Jenkins – Community Health Council 

Ms.M.A.Lewis – Citizen Representative (Rhondda Cynon Taf) 
Mr.N.Williams – South Wales Fire & Rescue Service 

 
Invitees 

 
Mrs.C.Forbes-Thompson – Head of Democratic Services (Caerphilly CBC) 

Professor Marcus Longley – Chair of Cwm Taf Public Services Baord 
Dr.Kelechi Nnoaham – Chair of the Strategic Partnership Board 

  
Officers 

 
Ms.K.May – Head of Democratic Services (Rhondda Cynon Taf) 

Mrs.A.Taylor – Head of Democratic Services (Merthyr Tydfil) 
Ms.L.Lawson – Performance Manager (Rhondda Cynon Taf) 

Mrs.S.Davies – Partnership Manager (Merthyr Tydfil) 
Mr.A.Mogford – Strategic Support Officer (Merthyr Tydfil) 

Ms.S.Lyons-Nicholas – Performance & Scrutiny Officer (Merthyr Tydfil) 
 

10 WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS 
 
 The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and the necessary introductions 
 were made. 
 
11 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
 Apologies for absence were received from County Borough Councillors 
 L.M.Adams (Rhondda Cynon Taf), J.Amos (Merthyr Tydfil), E.George 
 (Rhondda Cynon Taf), D.Sammon (Merthyr Tydfil) and T.Skinner (Merthyr 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3a



 Tydfil), Mr.M.J.Maguire (Citizen Representative – Merthyr Tydfil) and 
 Mr.J.Roome (Ambulance Service).  

 
12 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
 RESOLVED – to note that in accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct 
 there were no declarations of interest made at the meeting pertaining to the 
 agenda.  
 
13 MINUTES 
 
 RESOLVED -  to approve as an accurate record the minutes of the meeting of 
 the Cwm Taf Public Services Board Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 held on the 18th December, 2017.  
 
14 ROLE AND FUNCTIONS OF THE CWM TAF PUBLIC SERVICES BOARD 
 AND THE STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP BOARD  
 
 The Committee received Professor Marcus Longley, Chair of the Cwm Taf 
 Public Services Board (CTPSB) and Dr.Kelechi Nnoaham, Chair of the 
 Strategic Partnership Board respectively, both of which gave an overview of 
 their  individual roles and functions of both Boards.   
 
 Professor Longley informed Members that he took up his role as Chair of 
 Cwm Taf University Health Board five months ago and at the last meeting of 
 the Cwm Taf Public Services Board he was appointed as Chair and as of yet 
 not Chaired a meeting of the Board.  Prior to these appointments he was the 
 Vice-Chair of Cardiff and the Vale Health Board. 
 
 As the new Chair of the Cwm Taf PSB, he reported that his main focus is on 
 perception and bureaucracy but as the PSB is in its infancy it is too soon to be 
 specific.   
 
 Dr.Nnoaham reported that he was also new to the partnership in that he 
 became a member in November, 2016 and reiterated the point made by 
 Professor Longley in that  the PSB, which is a partnership body established 
 in accordance with the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act, 2015 
 (the “Act”) is in its early stages but appreciated that Members of the Joint 
 Overview and Scrutiny Committee task is to hold the PSB to account.  The 
 Strategic Partnership Board which he Chairs is a Steering Group of the PSB. 
 

Following the observations made by Profession Longley and Dr.Nnoaham 
they responded to questions/comments made by Members of the JOSC, one 
of which was in respect of the different priorities of partners of both Boards.  In 
response Profession Longley stated that the Health Board has a lot of issues 
under Health and Well-being which cannot be dealt with under one single 
entity and therefore the members of both Boards are key players in delivering 
the tasks that they have been assigned to do in accordance with the Act.  For 
example, one of the areas of concern that came out of the consultation in 
respect of the Cwm Taf Well-being Plan was accessibility of health services 

Page 6



as many patients found difficulty in getting to see a GP as the surgery is too 
far away and the same problems are experienced in attending hospital 
appointments.  Such matters come within the remit of the PSB and can be 
eased by working together.  The findings of the consultation will inform the 
PSB’s Work Programme and respective action plan which when published will 
subsequently be scrutinised by this JOSC. 
 
Mr.N.Williams of the South Wales Fire & Rescue Service reported that from a 
Fire Service perspective the role that that service as a statutory partner of the 
PSB has to play is clear and he would therefore be happy to give an overview 
of its role at a future meeting of the JOSC.  However, it must be recognised 
that the South Wales Fire & Rescue Service which has 11 stations is 
partnered with nine Public Service Boards and Cwm Taf is the only one that is 
joined with two Local Authorities (Merthyr Tydfil and Rhondda Cynon Taf).   
 
Mr.Williams reported that currently 3,500 home checks (fire risks) are 
undertaken in Cwm Taf and those individuals are identified through a number 
of needs.  As from the 1st April, 2018 these home safety checks will be 
enhanced whereby time will be spent with the individuals concerned to 
ascertain any other needs e.g. prevention from falling and the necessary 
referrals will be made for adaptations and support. 
 
Following a general discussion, it was RESOLVED – 
 
1. To note the comments made by both Professor M.Longley and 

Dr.K.Nnoaham regarding their respective roles; 
 

2. That Mr.N.Williams of the South Wales Fire & Rescue Service be invite to 
give a presentation at a future meeting of this Committee; 

 

3. That when available, the JOSC be furnished with copies of the Work 
Programme and the Action Plan (following the feedback from the Well-
being Plan consultation) of the Cwm Taf Public Service Board.      

 
Note: At this juncture in the proceedings, Professor Longley and Dr.Nnoaham left 
the meeting. 
 
15 HEAD OF DEMOCRATIC SERVICES – CAERPHILLY COUNTY BOROUGH 
 COUNCIL  
 
 In accordance with Minute No.7(3) of the meeting of this Committee held on 
 the 18th December, 2017, Members received Mrs.C.Forbes-Thompson, Head 
 of Democratic Services (Caerphilly County Borough Council) who reported 
 on the current arrangements that are in place in the scrutiny of  Caerphilly 
 Public Service Board.  At its first meeting held in September, 2016, the 
 Partnerships Scrutiny Committee considered the terms of reference 
 together with co-option.   
 
 Members of the Partnerships Scrutiny Committee were keen for young 
 individuals to be co-opted onto the Committee as the title of the Act is the 

Page 7



 Well-being of Future Generations.  The Chair of the Youth Forum is co-opted 
 onto the Committee and the Deputy Chair of the Forum is the substitute.  
 Mrs.Forbes-Thompson reported that at the meeting held in September, 
 2016, Members agreed that they would like to see a greater diversity of 
 representation when scrutinising the work of the Public Services Board and 
 felt it important that they sit on the Committee in their own right, rather than by 
 invitation.  It was therefore agreed that in addition to a co-opted place being 
 offered to the Youth Forum, co-option be also sought from an equalities 
 organisation, a disability organisation giving a Committee membership of 16 
 Councillors, 6 co-opted members (3 statutory partner agencies and 3 others) 
 and up to 6 invited representatives.      
 
 At its second meeting held in February, 2017, the Partnerships Scrutiny 
 Committee considered the Governance Arrangements and the Draft Well-
 being Assessment.  Following this meeting a letter was sent to the PSB 
 asking that they put Affordable Housing back into the plan.   
 

Ms.Forbes-Thompson further outlined the items that were considered at the 
 following two meetings of the Committee and stated that from September, 
 2016  to date the Partnerships Scrutiny Committee has met on four 
 occasions.   

 
Following the observations made by Ms.Forbes-Thompson and the responses 

 to the queries of Members, the Chair thanked her for her attendance at 
 today’s meeting and it was RESOLVED – to note the information. 

 
J.BONETTO 

CHAIR 
 

The meeting closed at 11.15 a.m.   

Page 8



MINUTES OF MEETING

CWM TAF PUBLIC SERVICES 
BOARD JOINT OVERVIEW 

AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
MEETING

THURSDAY, 6TH SEPTEMBER, 2018

PRESENT: Councillors:
T Skinner (Merthyr Tydfil CBC) (Chair)
J Bonetto (Rhondda Cynon Taf CBC) (Vice-Chair)

Councillors:
J Amos (Merthyr Tydfil CBC), D Isaac (Merthyr Tydfil CBC), 
M J Powell (Rhondda Cynon Taf CBC) and D Sammon (Merthyr 
Tydfil CBC)

Cooptees:
M Jehu (Local Health Board), J Jenkins (Community Health 
Council), M A Lewis (RCT Citizen Representative) and 
M J Maguire (MT Citizen Representative)

Officers:
G W Chapman (Chief Executive), A Owen (Chief Officer 
(Regeneration and Public Protection)), A Mogford (Business 
Change Manager), C Hole (Head of Community Wellbeing) and 
A Powell (Performance and Scrutiny Manager), C Hanagan, and 
J Nicolls (Democratic Services) 

Outside Bodies:
S James (Interlink)
L Lawson and K Wells (Public Service Board)

M Morgan (Democratic Services Officer)

Page 9

Agenda Item 3b



ITEM 
NO.

AGENDA MATTER DECISION

1  Apologies for Absence Apologies for absence were received from Councillor L M 
Adams, Councillor C Barry, Councillor E George, Councillor 
E Stephens and J Room.

2  Declarations of Interest 
(including whipping 
declarations)

No Declarations of Interest were made.

3  Progress Updates on 
Public Service Board 
and Strategic 
Partnership Board

The Chair welcomed Gareth Chapman Chief Executive 
MTCBC and Vice Chair of the Public Service Board to the 
Meeting.

Gareth Chapman referred to young people being 
represented on the Committee and suggested that an 
invitation be put out to School Forums and School Councils 
in relation to representation on the Committee.

The Chair advised that this issue was being addressed.

Gareth Chapman then updated the Committee in relation to 
the following:

 Finance
 Asset Management
 Youth Services
 People working together to deliver real change for 

Communities
 Focus on what needs to be delivered for 

Communities

The Chair then referred to funding issues and the impact on 
delivery and what was the current situation in relation to 
using other Models.

A Member also referred to establishing some means of 
interacting quickly on line. 

The Chair then thanked Gareth Chapman for attending and 
the update to the Committee.

4  Overview of Our Cwm 
Taf Well-being 
Objectives Delivery 
Plans

The Chair referred the Committee to the ‘Overview of Our 
Cwm Taf Wellbeing Objectives Delivery Plans’ report.

The Chair then welcomed Chris Hole, Simon James and 
Alyn Owen to the Meeting.

Loneliness and Isolation, Cross Cutting Objective

Simon James of Interlink circulated to the Committee a 
Presentation entitled ‘Stay Well in your Community – 
Tackling Loneliness and Isolation’ that gave details of the 
following:

 Do we need to invest in Community Solutions that 

Page 10



reduce demand and allow public services to 
support and focus on more complex issues

 Early Intervention
 Cost / Cost Effectiveness 
 Demand / Money
 Friends and Family
 Community
 Third Sector Providers
 Public Sector
 Evaluation of the Isolation to Integration Project – 

May 2015
 Stay Well in your Community
 How do we implement the WFG Act and five ways 

of working
 What is a Community Hub
 What is the role for Commissioners

Simon James also gave an update in relation to:

 Delivery Lead
 Progress to date
 Next Steps
 Any Challenges

The following questions were then raised by the Committee 
and were responded to in detail by Simon James:

 Clarity on Client Groups
 Geography rather than Category
 Cross Cutting objectives relying on Volunteers – 

Funding 
 Involvement of Schools
 How is success being measured
 What are the initial thoughts and plans
 Connection with the third Sector and the Public 

Sector
 What is being done to bridge the gap
 To look at how information is presented in the 

future
 Third Sector mapping activities
 Directory Provision to avoid duplication of work
 Reference b.1 and b.2 of the Delivery Plan

Thriving Communities

Chris Hole then updated the Committee in relation to 
Thriving Communities and gave a summary in relation to 
the Local Implementation Group, the Evaluation Framework 
and Community Zones

Strong Economy Delivery Plan

Alyn Owen then updated the Committee in relation to the 
Delivery Plan and gave a summary in relation to the 
Regional South East Wales Initiative, City Deal, Workforce 
Development, Public Sector Partners, Tourism 
Development, Training and future Skills and the Draft 

Page 11



Employment Pledge.

The Chair then referred to the links in the action plan and 
mapping to ensure that the links were seamless. 

The Chair then thanked Simon James, Chris Hole and Alyn 
Owen for the update to the Committee.

5  Development of Joint 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Work Programme

The Committee were circulated with a Draft Work 
Programme Descriptor for 2018/19.

The Chair then invited comments on the Work Programme 
from the Committee.

Andrew Mogford referred to the Cwm Taf Wellbeing Plan 
and the four Wellbeing Objectives and suggested that two 
Objectives be considered at each Scrutiny Meeting.  

The Chair then suggested that Meetings be convened in 
November 2018, January 2019 and March 2019. 

Committee Members then agreed with this suggestion as it 
would give more time for consideration of the objectives.

A Committee Member then advised that there was no 
reference to the exit from the European Union in the 
proposal as this could have an impact on the Plan.

Another Member then advised that the purpose of the 
Committee was to scrutinise the delivery of the Plan and 
suggested that the nominated lead for each objective be 
invited to attend the Meetings. 

The Committee then recommended that the Public Service 
Board (PSB) put together a small working group to look at 
this.

The Committee also agreed that three and not two 
Committee Meetings be held in the Municipal year i.e. in 
November 2018, January 2019 and March 2019.

The Chair then advised that she had received 
representation from a Committee Member requesting 
amending the start time for the Meeting to later in the day.

Debate then ensued by the Committee on the 
commencement time and dates for future Meetings and 
after consideration it was;

Resolved that:

The following timetable and themes for forthcoming JOSC 
Meetings be agreed:

Thursday 22 November 2018 - Commencing at 10.00 am

 Healthy People
 Performance Management Framework

Page 12



Thursday 24 January 2019 – Commencing at 10.00 am

 Thriving Communities
 Public Service Board Annual Report

Thursday 21 March 2019 – Commencing at 10.00 am.

 Loneliness and Isolation, Cross cutting Objective
 Strong Economy

A suggestion was also made that the Chair or Vice Chair of 
the Public Service Board be invited to attend all Committee 
Meetings.

6  Confirmation of 
proposed dates for 
future Meetings

The Committee confirmed the Committee Meeting dates as 
agreed previously. 

A Member then referred to the suitability of the location for 
the Meeting due to limited parking facilities and access to 
Wi-Fi.

The Committee agreed that the appropriate Support 
Officers discuss potential location(s) for future Committee 
Meetings and present as a short report to the next Meeting.

It was agreed that agenda Items / Updates must not take 
the form of a Presentation.

To ensure best use of Meeting time and allow sufficient time 
for meaningful discussion and challenge it was emphasised 
that:

 Presenting Officers are requested to keep their 
updates brief

7  Any Other Business 
deemed urgent by the 
Chair

The Chair advised that there was no business deemed 
urgent.

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



 

CWM TAF PUBLIC SERVICES BOARD 
JOINT OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 

 

 

 

Overview of Cwm Taf Well-being Objectives Delivery Plans 

 
1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 

 
1.1 To provide the Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Committee) with oversight 

of the progress made against the Cwm Taf Well-being Plan Objective ‘Thriving 
Communities’. 
 
The report of the Strategic Partnership Board (SPB) attached at Appendix 1 sets 
out progress made in respect of Thriving Communities 1st year delivery plan.    
This report was presented to the SPB at its most recent meeting on the 6th of 
November 2018. 
 
Paul Mee, Director of Public Health, Protection & Community Services, Rhondda 
Cynon Taf County Borough Council, is the Lead for Thriving Communities and will 
present the report to Committee.  
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 The Committee is requested to review the SPB Report at Appendix 1 and :- 
i. Consider :- 

a) the extent of progress to date,  
b) the extent to which it is evident that differences are being made to 

communities and citizens within Cwm Taf in improving the Social, 
Economic, Environmental and Cultural Well-being of the area.  

ii. Identify any further information it would like to consider in support of the 
delivery of the Well-being Plan and how this could be most effectively 
presented to Committee at future meetings. 

 
3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 

 
3.1 As Members are aware, the Cwm Taf Well-being Plan 2018-2023 was published 

on the 4th of May 2018 and contained four Objectives:- 
 

 Thriving Communities 
 Healthy People 
 Strong Economy 
 Loneliness & Isolation (cross cutting Objective)  

 
The Delivery Plans for each objective within the Well-being Plan were approved by 
the Public Service Board (PSB) in July 2018.    These delivery plans were aimed 
at addressing the immediate steps within the Well-being Plan.  
 
 

Report Author Paul Mee – Lead Thriving Communities 

Committee Date 22.11.2018 

 

Page 15

Agenda Item 5



 
An overview of each Delivery Plan was subsequently presented to Committee in 
September 2018.  At that meeting, Committee determined that each Objective 
would be scrutinised in more detail at a future meeting. 
 
Thriving Communities is the first Objective to receive this further scrutiny. 
 

4.0 CURRENT POSITON  
 

4.1 Detailed scrutiny of the progress made against delivery plans for each objective 
takes place at the SPB.  An overarching report, of all four Objectives, is then 
submitted to the PSB by the Chair of SPB.    

 
The current progress report to SPB, with regards to delivery against the Thriving 
Communities Objective, is included at Appendix 1.   

 
Both SPB and PSB have considered whether the monitoring reports provide 
enough assurance to Members as to the progress in respect of each the Well-
being Objectives.   

 

It is recognised that the delivery of the plan is in its infancy and it is equally 
important to monitor and measure how we are doing things differently as a 
partnership.  It is also widely accepted that the impact of the work undertaken on 
the Objectives may be difficult to measure short term and the Welsh Government 
and Data Unit Cymru are providing support to assist PSB’s with addressing this.   

 

The first year delivery plans are activity / milestone focussed and the performance 
monitoring framework will need to develop to become more outcome focused as 
delivery against the plans progress.   To assist with monitoring performance and 
progress, in addition to a RAG rated delivery plan and information / data relevant 
to each objective, the SPB receive a Highlight / Exception report. 

 
This Highlight / Exception reports aim to capture key achievements, other activities 
(outside the delivery plans) that contribute to the Well-being Plan, what is working 
well and what is not working well, in addition to risks and issues that require 
escalation to the PSB.   

  
  
5.0 FUTURE REQUIREMENTS   
 
5.1 

 
At the most recent SPB in November 2018 the performance management 
framework and risk register for the Public Service Board were considered.  It was 
agreed that further work would be undertaken to ensure the Delivery Plans from 
2019/20 onwards demonstrate the 5 ways of working, are more outcome focused 
and consider all risks in connection with delivery against the Well-being Plan.  
 
There is a workshop planned at the SPB in January 2019 to consider how to take 
this forward.   
 
Consideration also needs to be given to the change of boundaries for Bridgend PSB 
and any impact that this may have on the delivery of Cwm Taf PSB Objectives. 
 
Further updates will be provided to Committee as this work progresses.   
 
 Page 16



 
 

6.0 NEXT STEPS 
 

6.1 The priorities for Thriving Communities Objective over the next quarter include:- 
 
Rhondda Fach 

 Commence capital works to the Community Hub in Ferndale 

 Provide specialist training for Hub Staff in order to ensure a Single Service 
approach and IAA model 

 To develop a bespoke Community Zone ACE plan aligned to the Strategic 
ACE plan 

 Deliver local projects with the community to enhance natural assets in 
partnership with NRW 

 Develop an evaluation framework for the Zones 
 
Gurnos 

 Continuing to establish the Neighbourhood Network 

 Develop and deliver on environmental projects with NRW funding 

 Implementing engagement and communication plan with programme of 
community events, developing connections with spokes , supported by seed 
funding role 

 Pending the formal approval of the ICF Capital,  develop the reception area of 
Hub to support SPOC and IAA 

 
 
Paul Mee 
Lead for Thriving Communities Objective 
Cwm Taf Public Service Board 
 

 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



 

JOSC_22.11.18_Appendix 1 

Cwm Taf PSB – Strategic Partnership Board 
 

Highlight / Exception Reporting from Objective Leads  
 
Agenda No SPB Nov18_Item 4i 

Well-being 
Objective 

Thriving Communities 
 

Lead Officer Paul Mee RCTCBC / Chris Hole MTCBC 

Key Achievements 
and any quick 
wins 

Date Red Amber Green Not 
Due 

06/11/2018 3 7 34 26 
18/09/18 4 5 50 11 

 
See Appendix 1 and 2 for detail of progress against 
delivery plans and measures. 
 
Gurnos 

 Engagement plan agreed and being implemented, with 
2 community events and first meeting of implementation 
group. 

 
Rhondda Fach 

 Community Co-ordinator appointed on the 1st 
November, following confirmation of WG’s Seed 
Funding 

 Analysis from recent events shows that the community 
feel more involved and feel part of the Community Zone 
developments 

 Confirmed membership of the Community Hub 
Management Board and Neighbourhood Network 
Group 

 Confirmation awaited of £100,000 ICF funding, capital 
costs to replace roof and windows of the Hub building 
 

 Seed Funding approved for both areas.  

Other Activities 
that contribute to 
the delivery of the 
Well-being plan.   
 

Gurnos and Rhondda Fach 

 NRW project has begun with multi agency and 
community groups set up to drive priorities for spend by 
March 2019 in both areas. 

 Raising awareness of the roll out of Universal Credit, 
ensuring support can be offered through the SPOC and 
IAA model of the Hub and Zone. 

What is working 
well and how does 
this reflect the 5 
Ways of Working? 

 Confirmation of support from Data Cymru to support 
engagement, involvement, social research and design, 
monitoring and evaluation.  Meeting to be held on 5th 
November to discuss plan of support. 

 Involving diverse groups in the development of the 
community zone in Rhondda Fach, by removing 
barriers to participation, e.g., young people and adults 
with learning disabilities. 

 The Rhondda Fach Community Zone Implementation 

Page 19

http://www.ourcwmtaf.wales/


 

JOSC_22.11.18_Appendix 1 

Group is working collaboratively by various partners 
leading on the actions within the first year local delivery 
plan and feeding back in to group. 

 Gurnos area have progressed their community 
involvement and have a clear plan for engagement 
moving forward 

What are the 
priorities for next 
quarter? 

Rhondda Fach 

 Launch the opening of the Community Hub and 
Zone 

 Provide specialist training for Hub Staff in order to 
ensure a Single Service approach and IAA model 

 To develop a bespoke Community Zone ACE plan 
aligned to the Strategic ACE plan 

 Deliver local projects with the community to 
enhance natural assets in partnership with NRW 

 Develop an evaluation framework for the Zones 
 
Gurnos 

 Continuing to establish the Neighbourhood Network 

 Develop and deliver on environmental projects with 
NRW funding 

 Implementing engagement and communication plan 
with programme of community events, developing 
connections with spokes , supported by seed funding 
role 

 Pending the formal approval of the ICF Capital,  
develop the reception area of Hub to support SPOC 
and IAA  

What is not 
working well and 
what are the  
challenges / risks? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
What needs to be 
escalated to PSB? 

 Funding could be a potential risk for the Rhondda Fach 
Community Zone. This may pose a risk to the full 
scheme of work if the funding profile is not secured. 

 Some deadlines for Gurnos Community Zone have 
been extended. SPB are asked to note the following 
extensions:- 

o 1.1.1f to December 18 (from July 18).  
o 1.1.2a to December 18 (from July 18) 
o 1.1.2b to June 19 (from May 18) 
o 1.1.3a to November 18 (from July 18) 

 
Nothing at this stage. 

What else can 
SPB members do 
to progress this 
Objective? Inc. 
information / 
comms & 
Engagement. 

Nothing at this stage. 
 

 

Page 20

http://www.ourcwmtaf.wales/


SPBNOV18_Item4i_Thriving Commnities_Appendix 1

Action that will Deliver Objective 

('What we need to do")

Ref 

Milestones / Sub Actions  ("How will we do it")

Delivery 

Date 
"Timescales"

Lead "who is 

responsible inc 

Governance 

Arrangements"

Progress - RAG (as at 06/11/18)

RHONDDA FACH

1.1.1a
Create a Cwm Taf Strategic Group (Objective 1) along with Terms of 

Reference and governance structure
Mar-17

Paul Mee and Chris 

Hole

Completed.

1.1.1b

Engage with and feedback to the community in the identified area through 

a Cwm Taf ‘Our Community Matters Event’ to identify what the community 

values and how things can be improved. 

Nov-17

Chair of Cwm Taf  

Strategic Group 

(objective 1)

Completed.

1.1.1c
Identify a Hub in the pilot area acting as a single point of contact (SPOC) for 

those requiring information, advice, support and intervention.
Jan-18

Chair of Cwm Taf  

Strategic Group 

(objective 1)

Completed.

1.1.1d Confirm Community Hub model and Anchor organisation Jan-18

Chair of Cwm Taf  

Strategic Group 

(objective 1)

Completed.

1.1.1e
Create a Rhondda Fach Task and Finish group to produce the plans of 

Community Hub, delivery timeline and associated costs
Jan-18 Paul Mee

Completed.

1.1.1f

Identify from feedback from the community, key services to be delivered 

from the Hub, including well-being services e.g. Library, childcare, 

employment support

Jan-18

Chair of Cwm Taf  

Strategic Group 

(objective 1)

Completed.

1.1.1g

Deliver four consultation events in the Rhondda Fach area with the 

community in both the proposed Hub building and the library with a focus 

on sharing the plan layouts and services that could be delivered by the 

Hub.

19th Feb 

to the 

19th 

March 

2018

RCT Consultation 

team, Claire 

Hutcheon, Wendy 

Edwards, Fern 

Partnership

Completed.

1.1.1h

Complete a ‘spoke’ mapping exercise of Rhondda Fach including buildings, 

services, networks, community groups and environmental and cultural 

assets.

April  

2018- 

ongoing 

Angharad Stephens 

with identified 

partners

Completed.

1.1.1i

Engage with the community through a Rhondda Fach ‘Our Community 

Matters’ event to allow residents to reflect on their community 

experiences, highlighting strengths and areas to develop. 

17th April 

2018
Simon James

Completed.

1.1.1j
Produce and present a cabinet report for approval to develop community 

Hubs in RCT, specifically in the Rhondda Fach area, Ferndale Infant school.
19th April 

2018
Paul Mee

Completed.

1.1.1k
Arrange and attend a Theory of Change workshop facilitated by Welsh 

Government for all Cwm Taf strategic group members.
22nd May 

2018
Angharad Stephen

Completed.

1.1.1l
Produce a draft Theory of Change process in readiness to be jointly 

developed with the community 
May-18

Cwm Taf  Strategic 

Group (objective 1)

Completed.

1.1.1

m

Explore the accessibility of current services for individuals with Learning 

Disabilities in Rhondda Fach.

June 2018- 

Ongoing

Angharad 

Stephens/Nicola 

Sweet with identified 

community links

This work is being undertaken with the Learning 

Disabilities Community working Group. 

Actions Milestones

Develop Community Zones as an area 

or place based approach focussing on 

a preventative approach to support 

and improve outcomes for our areas 

with the greatest challenge.

P
age 21



SPBNOV18_Item4i_Thriving Commnities_Appendix 1

Action that will Deliver Objective 

('What we need to do")

Ref 

Milestones / Sub Actions  ("How will we do it")

Delivery 

Date 
"Timescales"

Lead "who is 

responsible inc 

Governance 

Arrangements"

Progress - RAG (as at 06/11/18)

1.1.1n

Develop and undertake a Rhondda Fach Theory of Change workshop with 

the community and undertake a baseline audit to monitor the success of 

the approach in the coming year.

19th June 

2018

Community Zone Task 

and Finish group with 

ICE support

Completed.

1.1.1o

Fern Partnership, as anchor organisation, to submit a funding business 

plan to Pen Y Cymoedd for match funding to develop the Rhondda Fach 

hub and zone

Jun-18
Michelle - Fern 

Partnership

Completed - FP have received an offer letter 

from Pen Y Cymoedd confirming £206,000 

capital grant (Revenue aspect was denied). 

1.1.1p

Review the membership and governance of the Cwm Taf Strategic group; 

create a Rhondda Fach Community Zone implementation groups with 

Terms of Reference

Jun-18

Chair of Cwm Taf  

Strategic Group 

(objective 1)

Completed - Membership reviewed, amended 

and TOR approved by the group

1.1.1q
Establish the membership of the Rhondda Fach Community Zone 

Implementation group with Terms of Reference
Jun-18

Chair of the Rhondda 

Fach Community Zone 

Implementation 

Group

Completed - Two meetings have taken place to 

date.  Membership of 20 colleagues in total, 

representatives from: police, NRW, 

Health/Health board, spokesperson for Learning 

disabilities, third sector organisation, various 

service areas (Education, resilient families, 

community safety, day centres, libraries, youth, 

adult services, corporate estates, regeneration) 

hoping to have Natalie Johnson from Save the 

Children to attend in the future.   TOR have been 

complete and approved by the group.

1.1.1r
Explore the membership of a Community Hub Management Board and 

required roles and representation
Sep-18

Chair of the Rhondda 

Fach Community Zone 

Implementation group

1.1.1s
Explore the membership of a Neighbourhood Network Group for the area 

to get the community connected. 
Sep-18

Chair of the Rhondda 

Fach Community Zone 

Implementation group

1.1.1t
Establish the Community Hub Management Board and required roles and 

representation
Oct-18

Chair of the Rhondda 

Fach Community Zone 

Implementation group

Completed - ToR complete and approved by CZ  

Implementation Group.  To confirm the 

Management Board will be chaired by Fern 

Partnership and will `consist of 6 members.           

i.   2 RCT Officers 

ii.  2 FP employees.  

iii. 2 Community members 

1.1.1u
Establish the Community Steering Group for the area to support the 

development of Neighbourhood networks
Oct-18

Chair of the Rhondda 

Fach Community Zone 

Implementation group

ToR complete and approved by CZ  

Implementation Group. To confirm the NN 

Group will be made up of public services and 

led/facilitated by the Community coordinator. 

1.1.1v Launch the opening of the Community Hub and Zone with the community Mar-19 The Community

Completed - Discussed in Community Zone 

Implementation Group- Complete 

Develop Community Zones as an area 

or place based approach focussing on 

a preventative approach to support 

and improve outcomes for our areas 

with the greatest challenge.

P
age 22



SPBNOV18_Item4i_Thriving Commnities_Appendix 1

Action that will Deliver Objective 

('What we need to do")

Ref 

Milestones / Sub Actions  ("How will we do it")

Delivery 

Date 
"Timescales"

Lead "who is 

responsible inc 

Governance 

Arrangements"

Progress - RAG (as at 06/11/18)

1.1.2a

Engage with the community through a Rhondda Fach ‘Our Community 

Matters’ event to explore access to information and services that have 

been identified through the mapping exercise.

Sep-18

Chair of the Rhondda 

Fach Community Zone 

Implementation group

Our Community Matters Event booked for the 

25th October. The event will focus on getting the 

community connected and starting to identify 

the skills and experience of the local residents. 

1.1.2b

Promote and raise awareness of the services that could be accessed 

through the Rhondda Fach Community Zones/Hub, such as: Social 

prescribing; Intergenerational activities; Communities for Work plus 

programme; widening the eligibility criteria for support; Digital inclusion 

and information literacy e.g. Digital Fridays and work clubs; Childcare 

provision being offered from the Community Hub in response to identified 

need by the community;  and access to the Resilient Family Service 

Sept 2018 

- ongoing
Partners

Social prescribing- Angharad has met with Lucy 

Foster (Wellbeing Officer) to explore the 

potential partnership working. 

1.1.2c
Raise awareness around the ACE agenda with the Rhondda Fach 

community.

Sept  

2018- 

Ongoing

Claire Hutcheon - 

Chair of the Rhondda 

Fach Community Zone 

Implementation group

Daniel Clayton (PHW- Senior Public Health 

Practitioner) sits on the CZ implementation 

group and has been delegated to complete an 

ACE training audit.

1.1.2d

Promote and raise the profile of online services such as the young person 

‘Wicid’ website and DEWIS with a focus on information, advice and 

assistance to the Rhondda Fach community.

Sept 2018 

- ongoing

Chair of Local 

Community Zone 

Implementation group

Online services will be promoted in Our 

Community Matters Events throughout the year. 

WICID editor will attend the next Community 

Matters event in October.

1.1.2e

Build capacity for providing the Rhondda Fach community with timely and 

accessible information, advice and assistance e.g. through upskilling 

volunteers/helpers and hub staff

Sept 2018 

- ongoing

Chair of the Rhondda 

Fach Community Zone 

Implementation group

Hayley John (Rhondda Fach Youth Engagement 

Officer- Part of NN Group) is attending an ACE 

Support Hub Train the Trainer on 2nd October 

1.1.2f

Work with partners in Rhondda Fach to provide health information and 

activities that promote people’s wellbeing including supporting the GP 

book prescription scheme

Sept 2018 

- ongoing

Chair of the Rhondda 

Fach Community Zone 

Implementation group

1.1.2g
Ensure that all relevant staff complete ACE training to build an ACE 

informed workforce

Jan 2019- 

Ongoing

Chair of Cwm Taf  

Strategic Group 

(objective 1)

1.1.3a
Work with the Rhondda Fach community to identify different methods of 

communication to ensure engagement is inclusive and accessible

June 2018- 

ongoing

Chair of the Rhondda 

Fach Community Zone 

Implementation group

Series of informal involvement events are 

ongoing; these events have been advertised via 

posters in local shops, social media and Our 

Cwm Taf website. Communication strategy 

approved by CZ Implementation Group(KS)

Working in partnership with People First to 

create easy read documents.

Improve access to information and 

services through a single point of 

contact approach at the Community 

Hub within each Community Zones, 

joining up/integrating ‘one public 

service’.

Communities to be positively 

engaged and empowered so they 

have a real say in the services they 

receive and how they are organised 

and delivered in their community 

together through a co-production 

approach

P
age 23



SPBNOV18_Item4i_Thriving Commnities_Appendix 1

Action that will Deliver Objective 

('What we need to do")

Ref 

Milestones / Sub Actions  ("How will we do it")

Delivery 

Date 
"Timescales"

Lead "who is 

responsible inc 

Governance 

Arrangements"

Progress - RAG (as at 06/11/18)

1.1.3b
Work with the Rhondda Fach community to identify areas of concerns 

regarding anti-social behaviour  and discuss potential solutions
Aug-18

Chair of the Rhondda 

Fach Community Zone 

Implementation group

Elen Reeves (SW Police) updated the 

Implementation group highlighting ongoing 

partnership work. Police did not identify any 

areas of major concern within the community 

zone, however this was identified as a priority 

for the residents therefore, further discussions 

to take place in future engagement.  Gary Black 

(Community Safety And Licensing Manager) is 

exploring the opportunities for the community 

to work with street cleaning to identify areas of 

concern 

1.1.3c Pilot approaches in Rhondda Fach to tackle ASB in identified areas
Sept 2018 

- ongoing 

Chair of the Rhondda 

Fach Community Zone 

Implementation group

As 1.1.3b

1.1.3d

Explore with the Rhondda Fach community possible events that would 

bring the community together and help them to feel better connected e.g. 

Christmas party, Halloween, Bonfire Night.

Sept - 

ongoing

Chair of Rhondda Fach 

Neighbourhood 

Network group

Implementation group were in agreement to 

raise the profile of community events such as 

‘Operation Bang’ in the next Community 

Matters Event. 

1.1.3e
Seek community views on the local green spaces and activities to gain a 

better understanding of what exists, used and needed in Rhondda Fach
Oct-18

Chair of Rhondda Fach 

Neighbourhood 

Network group

Natalie Rees (NRW) has mapped the green 

spaces in the Gurnos and suggested Emma 

Jones/Dai Walters (NRW) complete a similar task 

to map the existing local green spaces in Upper 

Rhondda Fach. Agenda item at the next 

Implementation group

1.1.3f
Complete a mapping exercise to identify the volunteering and ‘helping’ 

opportunities in Rhondda Fach
Nov-18

Chair of Rhondda Fach 

Neighbourhood 

Network group

1.1.3g
Promote the benefits of volunteering/helping  and inspire people to 

engage with volunteering/helping opportunities in Rhondda Fach
Dec-19

Chair of Rhondda Fach 

Neighbourhood 

Network group

1.1.3h
Identify with the community the skills and resources that they could 

provide as a volunteer/helper
Dec-19

Chair of Rhondda Fach 

Neighbourhood 

Network group

1.1.3i Develop a volunteering training schedule for Rhondda Fach Jan-19

Chair of Rhondda Fach 

Neighbourhood 

Network group

1.1.3j
Link volunteering/helping opportunities to time banking and other reward 

schemes in Rhondda Fach
Jan-19

Chair of Rhondda Fach 

Neighbourhood 

Network group

1.1.4a
Complete an evaluation exercise with the Rhondda Fach community to 

gain base line data
Jun-18

Chair of the Rhondda 

Fach Community Zone 

Implementation group

Completed - Baseline data was collected in the 

community matters event in June. (baseline 

statements)

Communities to be positively 

engaged and empowered so they 

have a real say in the services they 

receive and how they are organised 

and delivered in their community 

together through a co-production 

approach

Develop a joint evaluation framework 

across Cwm Taf to compare and 

contrast the models and their 

effectiveness to inform future 

developments.

P
age 24



SPBNOV18_Item4i_Thriving Commnities_Appendix 1

Action that will Deliver Objective 

('What we need to do")

Ref 

Milestones / Sub Actions  ("How will we do it")

Delivery 

Date 
"Timescales"

Lead "who is 

responsible inc 

Governance 

Arrangements"

Progress - RAG (as at 06/11/18)

1.1.4b
Complete a Theory Of Change exercise with Rhondda Fach partners and 

community 

June 2018- 

ongoing

Chair of the Rhondda 

Fach Community Zone 

Implementation group

Completed - Explored the Theory of Change 

framework with the community through asset 

focused workshops. Now complete but will be 

under ongoing review.

1.1.4c
Confirm the performance indicators that will be reported on once the hub 

is established  

Sept 2018- 

ongoing 

Chair of Cwm Taf  

Strategic Group 

(objective 1)

1.1.4d
Work with young people in Rhondda Fach to capture the impact of 

Community Zones through film making.  

Sept 2018- 

ongoing 

Chair of the Rhondda 

Fach Community Zone 

Implementation group

1.1.4e
Work with partners to explore and establish an evaluation framework to 

measure the impact of Community Zones 

Sept 2018- 

ongoing 

Chair of Cwm Taf  

Strategic Group 

(objective 1) 

1.1.4f
Complete the same evaluation exercise delivered in June, with the 

Rhondda Fach community in order to measure distance travelled
Mar-19

Chair of the Rhondda 

Fach Community Zone 

Implementation group

1.1.4g
Case studies to be completed by the Rhondda Fach community to evidence 

the development and impact of neighbourhood networks 
Mar-19

Chair of Rhondda Fach 

Neighbourhood 

Network group

GURNOS, MT

1.1.1a
Create a Community Zone in the Gurnos – building identified, renovations 

underway
Apr-18 MTCBC, MVH,

Completed - Building is open for service 

delivery, to the community, renovations are 

being made in some areas.

1.1.1b Review approach to regional governance- governance agreed  May-18
Strategic 

Implementation group

Completed

1.1.1c Co locate services into community hub- service re-located Jun-18 MTCBC/MVH Some services are co-located.

1.1.1d
Agree Local Governance arrangements for the Community Hub ‘facility’ -  

Strategic Building Group Operational
Jun-18 MVH

Completed

1.1.1e
Develop Governance Structure  for the ‘wider community zone’ approach  

across partners - Agreed by Partners and community
Aug-18 MTCBC

Completed - MTCBC scrutiny ratified in 

September.  Structure agreed and completed.

1.1.1f
Develop a Community Zone/ Gurnos Community Network ‘brand’ – with a 

marketing plan in place
Jul-18 MTCBC

Deadline date request change to Dec 18.  To be 

agreed by SPB.

1.1.1g To identify the needs of vulnerable families residing in the Gurnos 

community zone -identify needs
Aug-18 Cordis bright research work commissioned, awaiting report

1.1.1h
Develop “an ACE-informed” workforce across the community Zone - 

Schedule of training  to be agreed
Nov-18 Public Health

workforce training for some areas of service is 

underway and train the trainer lead nominated.

Ongoing.

Ongoing.

Develop a joint evaluation framework 

across Cwm Taf to compare and 

contrast the models and their 

effectiveness to inform future 

developments.

Develop community zones as an area 

or place based approach focussing a 

preventative approach to support to 

improve outcomes for our areas with 

the greatest challenges.

P
age 25



SPBNOV18_Item4i_Thriving Commnities_Appendix 1

Action that will Deliver Objective 

('What we need to do")

Ref 

Milestones / Sub Actions  ("How will we do it")

Delivery 

Date 
"Timescales"

Lead "who is 

responsible inc 

Governance 

Arrangements"

Progress - RAG (as at 06/11/18)

1.1.2a
In partnership with key agencies establish the model for Information 

Advice and Assistance Service within the Community Zone.
Jul-18 MTCBC/MVH

outline model developed, anchor organisation 

and some partners co-located contributing into 

the model - ongoing but work underway.  

Deadline date request change to Dec 18. To be 

agreed by SPB.  (Should this be red?)

1.1.2b
Ensure IT access and infrastructure is in place for the community to access 

information  within the hub Electronic Info points  in place
May-18 MTCBC / 3Gs

Ongoing  - work underway. Awaiting  funding 

confirmation  to progress (seed. ICF)  Deadline 

date request change to Jan 19. To be agreed by 

SPB. (Should this be red?)

1.1.2c
Agree contract with Voluntary partner  to provide  Information and advice 

from facility ‘SPOC’ approach - 3 sessions open to community
Sep-18 MTCBC/CS

As above (1.1.2a)

1.1.2d
Explore with FF and CS the provision of IAA in the community hub ‘SPOC’ 

approach – 3 additional spaces open
Sep-18 MTCBC

ongoing.

1.1.2e
Agree how IAA model is extended to co-located services  within the hub - 4 

additional sessions  available
Sep-18

Lead; 3Gs 

Development Trust

As above (1.1.2a)

1.1.2f

Complete a mapping exercise of services and provision, and data, including 

building, services, networks, community groups, environmental and 

cultural -  A map of provision and services in the area

Jul-18 MVH /MTCBC

Completed.

1.1.2g 
Establish and develop a range of specialist clinics for drop ins based upon 

community needs - Drop in take up
Jul-18

Completed - Delivery of clinics is in place  and 

has been for some time  - this can be expanded 

with a revamping of the area.

1.1.3a
Establish a Neighbourhood Network model to ensure a coproduction 

approach is embedded across the Community Zone
Jul-18

MTCBC, 3Gs 

Development Trust, 

VAMT

Implementation Group meeting 11th October 

2018.  Our Gurnos Matters community event 

17th October.  Neighbourhood Network will be 

follow from these events.  Deadline date 

request change to Nov 18. To be agreed by SPB. 

1.1.3b
Develop a Community Zone promotional campaign- to raise awareness  of 

community zone, marketing plan  and use of digital media
Jul-18

MTCBC, 3Gs 

Development Trust, 

VAMT

Will tie in with 1.1.3a.  Deadline date request 

change to Dec 18. To be agreed by SPB.

1.1.3c Establish and create a Neighbourhood Network  - TOR’s agreed and in 

place  
Jul-18 MTCBC, VAMT As 1.1.3a.  Deadline date request change to Dec 

18.  To be agreed by SPB.

1.1.3d
Develop a robust  annual community engagement and involvement  action 

plan - 1 co- produced solution  to local needs identified
Aug-18 MTCBC, VAMT

Completed - Engagement Plan to go to MTCBC 

Scrutiny 18th September for approval.

1.1.4a Complete a base lining exercise with the community Jun-18

Implementation 

group/Community 

Steering group

Completed

Improve access to information and 

services through a single point of 

contact approach at the Community 

Hub within each Community Zones, 

joining up/integrating ‘one public 

service’.

Communities to be positively 

engaged and empowered so they 

have a real say in the services they 

receive and how they are organised 

and delivered in their community 

together through a co-production 

approach

Develop a joint evaluation framework 

across Cwm Taf to compare and 

contrast the models and their 

effectiveness to inform future 

developments.

P
age 26



SPBNOV18_Item4i_Thriving Commnities_Appendix 1

Action that will Deliver Objective 

('What we need to do")

Ref 

Milestones / Sub Actions  ("How will we do it")

Delivery 

Date 
"Timescales"

Lead "who is 

responsible inc 

Governance 

Arrangements"

Progress - RAG (as at 06/11/18)

1.1.4b Complete a Theory Of Change exercise with partners and community
June 2018- 

ongoing

Implementation 

group/Community 

Steering group

The implementation group once formed will 

complete informed by data gathered.

1.1.4c Finalise the performance indicators for Community Zones
Sept 2018- 

ongoing

Implementation 

Group

Will begin when implementation group has 

been established

1.1.4d
Work with the community to capture the impact of Community Zones 

through case studies

Sept 2018- 

ongoing

Gurnos Community 

Zone Implementation 

Group

As 1.1.4c

1.1.4e
Work with partners to explore and establish an evaluation framework to 

measure the impact of Community Zones

Sept 2018- 

ongoing

Cwm Taf Strategic 

Group (objective 

1)/Implementation 

Group

As 1.1.4c

Develop a joint evaluation framework 

across Cwm Taf to compare and 

contrast the models and their 

effectiveness to inform future 

developments.

P
age 27



SPBNOV18_Item4i_Thriving Communities_Appendix 2

Local/

National Cwm Taf Wales Merthyr RCT Cwm Taf Wales Merthyr RCT

Thriving 

Communitie

s (RCT)

TC/RCT1 Local
Number of residents attending community 

engagement events

90 (November 

event)
N/A

30 

(November 

event)

60 

(November

event)

35 (June) Increase
As event 

schedule

Local 

Community 

Implementation 

Group

Thriving 

Communitie

s (RCT)

TC/RCT2 Local

Awareness and understanding of the role and work 

of the Hub (measures being developed around 

developing a baseline of what people understand of 

the approach)

N/A N/A N/A N/A Increase
As event 

schedule

Local 

Community 

Implementation 

Group

Thriving 

Communitie

s (RCT)

TC/RCT3 Local
Visitor numbers to Ferndale Hub-specific pages on 

Our Cwm Taf
N/A N/A N/A N/A Increase

Available 

weekly

Cwm Taf PSB 

support team

Thriving 

Communitie

s (RCT)

TC/RCT4 Local Footfall at the Hub following launch N/A N/A N/A N/A Increase

Fern Partnership 

/ hub staff and 

volunteers

Thriving 

Communitie

s (RCT)

TC/RCT5 Local

Measuring subjective well-being (short Warwick-

Edinburgh scale) used to assess courses and 

sessions delivered in the Hub, once operational.

N/A N/A N/A N/A Increase
As course 

schedule

Fern Partnership 

/ delivery staff

Thriving 

Communitie

s (Merthyr)

TC/MT1 Local
Number of residents engaged with at community 

events

90 (November 

event)
N/A

30 

(November 

event)

60 

(November

event)

35 (June) Increase
Event 

schedules

3Gs Foundation 

group / Gurnos 

community zone 

implementation 

group

Thriving 

Communitie

s (Merthyr)

TC/MT2 Local
Number of residents accessing information, advice 

and assistance
N/A N/A N/A N/A Increase Weekly

3Gs Foundation 

group / Gurnos 

community zone 

implementation 

group

Thriving 

Communitie

s (Merthyr)

TC/MT3 Local Footfall through the Community Hub N/A N/A N/A N/A Increase Weekly

3Gs Foundation 

group / Gurnos 

community zone 

implementation 

group

Thriving 

Communitie

s (Merthyr)

TC/MT4 Local
Measuring  well-being to assess courses and 

sessions delivered in the Hub.
N/A N/A N/A N/A Increase

As course 

schedule

3Gs Foundation 

group / Gurnos 

community zone 

implementation 

group

Direction of 

travel
Frequency

Responsible 

partner
CommentObjective

2017/18 Actual 2018/19
PI ref PI description

P
age 28



CWM TAF PUBLIC SERVICES BOARD 
JOINT OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

 

 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Cwm Taf Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 
Future Venues, Communication and Engagement 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 This report has been produced in response to a request from the Cwm Taf JOSC on 

6th September 2018; where Support Officers were tasked with identifying appropriate 
venues for future JOSC meetings and preparing a report for consideration and 
debate. 
 

1.2 The review has now been undertaken and a proposal drafted that takes into account 
the requirements of the Committee and its Terms of Reference. 

 
1.3 The proposal has been summarised in ‘Section 6’ and set out in greater detail in 

‘Appendix 1 and 2’. 
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
2.1  The Committee is requested to: 
 

 Consider and discuss the proposal; 
 

 Agree any amendments or further work required that will ensure the Committee’s 
preferred approach to venue selection, communication and engagement is met. 

 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 In order to ensure democratic accountability of the PSB, there is a requirement set 
 out in the ‘Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015’ together with 

Date Written 7th November 2018 

Report Author Anne Powell / Maria Purnell 

Service Area Merthyr Tydfil CBC 
Performance and Scrutiny 

Committee Date 22nd November 2018 

 

Page 29

Agenda Item 6



 associated statutory guidance, for a designated Local Government Scrutiny 
 Committee of the relevant authority to scrutinise the work of the PSB.   
 
3.2 During the first year of the Cwm Taf Public Service Board, a ‘Joint Overview and 
 Scrutiny Committee’ (JOSC) was established and a ‘Terms of Reference’ produced. 

The JOSC ‘Terms of Reference’ is based on the requirements of: 
 

 The Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015; 

 Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011; 

 The Local Authorities Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Wales) 
Regulations 2013 

  
3.3   Point 31 in the ‘Terms of Reference’ sets out the requirements in relation to ‘Public 
 Engagement’.  This includes the following: 
 

 Meetings of the JOSC and sub-committees are open to the public and all reports 
are available to the public unless exempt or confidential, when the items wold be 
considered in closed session. 

 The JOSC will seek to gather evidence from the public as an ongoing aspect of 
its work. 

 Meetings of the JOSC will be open to the public to observe and an item for public 
questions will be included on each agenda. 

 Letters and agenda packs will be published via the two Authorities agenda 
publication pages. 

 

3.4  At the JOSC meeting held on 6th September 2018, the existing venue was raised as 
 an issue.  Although in a central location, the venue was deemed by the Committee to 
 be unsuitable.  It was therefore agreed that the appropriate Support Officers would 
 undertake a piece of work to identify potential location(s) for future meetings and 
 present proposals to the next JOSC meeting in the form of a report. 
 
3.5 The following report details proposals for future meetings that will meet the needs of 
 the Committee and are in line with the requirements set out the JOSC ‘Terms of 
 Reference’. 
 

4.0 WHERE WE WERE  
 
4.1 The Cwm Taf JOSC was set up during year one (2017 / 2018) of the ‘Well-being of 

Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015’; with a ‘Terms of Reference’ being developed.  
Once set up, the main focus of the JOSC in year one was to scrutinise the 
development of the ‘Cwm Taf Wellbeing Plan’. 
 

4.2 The inaugural meeting of the JOSC took place on 20th February 2017 and was held 
 in a central location (Valleys Innovation Centre, Navigation Park, Abercynon).  The 
 Valleys Innovation Centre was used as the venue for all future meetings unless 
 otherwise agreed by the JOSC. 

 

4.3 The JOSC was both chaired and supported by Rhondda Cynon Taf CBC and 
 Merthyr Tydfil CBC on an annual rotation basis.  During the first year, the JOSC was 
 supported by RCTCBC and chaired by Councillor J. Bonetto (Vice Chair – Councillor 
 T. Skinner, MTCBC).    
 

Page 30



5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW  
 
5.1 The JOSC is now in its second year of operation. It was agreed in the last JOSC 

meeting (6th September 2018) that future meetings will take place on a bi-monthly 
basis to reduce the number of items on the agenda; therefore allowing sufficient time 
for debate. 
 

5.2 As the Committee currently works on a rotational basis – support arrangements have 
therefore changed and will be provided throughout year two by MTCBC.  Meetings 
are currently chaired by Councillor T. Skinner (Vice Chair – Councillor J. Bonetto). 
 

5.3 In addition to the above; there has also been a change in venue.  The previous 
meeting of the JOSC (6th September 2018) was held in ‘Venture Wales’, Abercynon.  
As referenced in 3.4 above; this venue was deemed to be unsuitable and Support 
Officers were therefore tasked to identify alternative options. 

 

6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE  
 
6.1 The selection of an appropriate venue is key to the success of the JOSC.  Any venue 

selected: 
 

 Must meet all the practical needs of the Committee to support its delivery.  
Criteria includes:  appropriate space for attendees to be comfortable; access to 
appropriate technology including Welsh translation facilities and Wi-fi; parking 
facilities and refreshments. 

 Is important to the community and can be easily accessed in order to facilitate 
engagement. 

 

6.2 Taking the above into account; proposals have been made which are 
summarised below.  To ensure a smooth transition, the proposed change has 
been broken down into key phases. 

 
6.2.1 Phase 1 (Short-Term):  This phase focuses on: 

 

 The inclusion of young people on the JOSC membership; 

 Ensuring the venue selected has clear links to the PSB Well-being 
Objective being discussed; 

 Improved communication and publicity both prior to and following the 
meeting; 

 Encouraging participation. 
 

A review will be undertaken at the end of this phase in order to determine 
success.  Phase 2 approach will be considered and amended accordingly at 
this stage. 

 
6.2.2 Phase 2 (Medium-Term):  Following a review and building on the short-term 
 developments; phase 2 objectives will include: 
 

 The introduction of a short practical site visit for committee members 
ahead of the meeting.  This is likely to act as a catalyst for improving 
questioning by scrutineers; 

Page 31



 Encourage public / community attendance at meetings to observe 
discussions. 

 
6.2.3 Phase 3 (Long-Term):  This phase will: 
 

 Seek to further improve the public / community ability to participate by 
factoring a short period of time after the meeting closes to enable them to 
ask pertinent questions and share experiences. 

 Explore additional methods of communication and engagement; in 
particular with individuals and groups who are unable to participate via 
existing methods. 

 
6.3 Detailed information relating to proposals and venues can be found in ‘Appendix 1 
 and 2’.  Whilst the above approach would take a little more organising, it would 
 provide regular opportunities to involve the public in the work of the PSB and the 
 JOSC.  It would also fulfil the Committees requirements and actively demonstrate 
 how the JOSC is applying the 5 ways of working.  Please see ‘Appendix 3’ for a copy 
 of the ‘Wellbeing Goals’ and ‘5 ways of working’. 
 
 

7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT  
 
7.1 Following consideration and debate by Committee Members; further work will be 
 undertaken as deemed necessary and the agreed approach for selecting future 
 venues implemented. 
 
7.2  If the approach is approved; Committee will need to discuss and agree the definition 
 of short, medium and long-term timescales. 
 
7.3 An action plan will need to be put in place to take this forward which will be overseen 
 by Support Officers and progress updates prepared for Committee as and when 
 deemed necessary. 
 
 

8.0 LINKS TO PSB’s WELL-BEING OBJECTIVES  

8.1 The recommended approach set out in ‘Section 6’ and ‘Appendix 1 and 2’ of this 
report supports all PSB Well-being Objectives by ensuring progress, decisions and 
future plans are robustly scrutinised by Committee Members, the public and others 
with a vested interest. 

 
8.2 The proposed approach will also support the requirements set out in the ‘Statutory 
 guidance on the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015’ which states: 
 

 A public body must take account of the importance of involving other persons 
 with an interest in achieving the well-being goals and ensure those persons 
 reflect the diversity of the population.  Detailed information on the ‘7 Well-
 being goals’ can be found in ‘Appendix 3’. 

 Effective involvement of people and communities in decisions that affect them 
 is at the heart of improving well-being currently and in the future. 

Page 32



 It is vital to factor people’s needs; ensuring engagement is meaningful and 
 effective. 

 
 
 

 
ELLIS COOPER  
DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE  

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

Cwm Taf Public Service 
Board Joint Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee 
Minutes 

 

6th September 2018 http://democracy.merthyr.gov.uk 

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

Page 33

http://democracy.merthyr.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=430&MId=3045&Ver=4&LLL=0


Appendix 1 
Proposed Approach - Phase 1: Short-Term 
 
The following diagram details the proposed short-term arrangements and may be subject to change following discussion or declined.  This phase focuses on: 
 

 The inclusion of young people on the JOSC membership; 

 Ensuring the venue selected has clear links to the PSB Well-being Objective being discussed at the meeting; 

 Improved communication and publicity both prior to and following the meeting; 

 Encouraging participation. 
 

A review will be undertaken at the end of this phase in order to determine success.  Phase 2 approach will be considered and amended accordingly at this stage. 
 

  
 

 
 
 

COMMUNICATION 
 

 
 
 
 
 

PRE-MEETING 

 
 
 
 
 

MEETING 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

MINUTES / PUBLICITY 

 

 Agenda and papers published. 

 Public notified via Facebook, Twitter 
(and any other method deemed 
appropriate) of availability of papers. 

 Public encouraged to submit 
appropriate, ‘topic specific’ questions. 

 Articles to highlight the process for 
feedback in response to questions 
submitted i.e. minutes published on 
website – therefore, public encouraged 
to follow the page for updates. 

 Questions collated and vetted to ensure 
appropriate and submitted to Chair for 
consideration and discussion in pre-
meeting. 
 

 

 Review and discuss agenda 

 Consider Member questions 

 Review and consider questions 
submitted by public (external) 

 

 Accessible venue that meets 
requirements of Committee and its 
Terms of Reference 

 Venue selected has clear links to 
the PSB Well-being Objective being 
discussed at that meeting 

 Inclusion of Young person(s) on 
core membership 

 

 Minutes published reflect 
questions received from public 
and responses. 

 Availability of minutes promoted 
via Facebook and Twitter. 

 
 
 

P
age 34



Proposed Approach - Phase 2: Medium-Term 
 
The following diagram details the proposed medium-term arrangements and may be subject to change following discussion or declined.  Following a phase one review and 
building on the short-term developments; phase 2 objectives will include: 
 

 The introduction of a short practical site visit for committee members ahead of the meeting.  This is likely to act as a catalyst for improving questioning by 
scrutineers; 

 Encourage public / community attendance at meetings to observe discussions. 

 

   
 

 
 
 

COMMUNICATION 
 

 
 
 
 
 

PRE-MEETING 

 
 
 
 

 

SITE VISIT 
 

 
 
 
 
 

MEETING 
 

 
 

 
 

MINUTES / 
PUBLICITY 

 Agenda and papers published. 

 Public notified via Facebook, 
Twitter (and any other method 
deemed appropriate) of 
availability of papers. 

 Public encouraged to submit 
appropriate, ‘topic specific’ 
questions. 

 Articles to highlight the process 
for feedback in response to 
questions submitted i.e. minutes 
published on website – 
therefore, public encouraged to 
follow the page for updates. 

 Questions collated and vetted to 
ensure appropriate and 
submitted to Chair for 
consideration and discussion in 
pre-meeting. 

 Review and discuss 
agenda 

 Consider Member 
questions 

 Review and consider 
questions submitted by 
public (external) 

 Members receive a ½ hr 
practical accompanied site 
visit of venue. 

 Public attendance – 
observation only. 

 Accessible venue that 
meets requirements of 
Committee and its Terms of 
Reference 

 Venue selected has clear 
links to the PSB Well-being 
Objective being discussed 
at that meeting 

 Inclusion of Young 
person(s) on core 
membership 

 Minutes published reflect 
questions received from 
public and responses. 

 Availability of minutes 
promoted via Facebook 
and Twitter. 

 

P
age 35



Proposed Approach - Phase 3: Long-Term 
 
The following diagram details the proposed long-term arrangements and may be subject to change following discussion or declined.  Following a review at the end of phase 
two; phase 3 objectives will: 
 

 Seek to further improve the public / community ability to participate by factoring a short period of time after the meeting closes to enable them to ask pertinent 
questions and share experiences. 

 Explore additional methods of communication and engagement; in particular with individuals and groups who are unable to participate via existing methods. 

 

   
 

 
 
 

COMMUNICATION 

 
 
 
 

 

PRE-MEETING 

 
 
 
 

SITE VISIT 

 
 
 
 

 

MEETING 
 

 

 
 

 

PUBLIC 
ENGAGEMENT 

 
 
 

MINUTES / 
PUBLICITY 

 Agenda and papers published. 

 Public notified via Facebook, 
Twitter (and any other method 
deemed appropriate) of 
availability of papers. 

 Public encouraged to submit 
appropriate, ‘topic specific’ 
questions. 

 Articles to highlight the process 
for feedback in response to 
questions submitted i.e. minutes 
published on website – 
therefore, public encouraged to 
follow the page for updates. 

 Questions collated and vetted to 
ensure appropriate and 
submitted to Chair for 
consideration and discussion in 
pre-meeting. 

 Review and discuss 
agenda 

 Consider Member 
questions 

 Review and 
consider questions 
submitted by public 
(external) 

 Members receive a 
½ hr practical 
accompanied site 
visit of venue. 

 Public attendance – 
observation only. 

 Accessible venue 
that meets 
requirements of 
Committee and its 
Terms of Reference 

 Venue selected has 
clear links to the PSB 
Well-being Objective 
being discussed at 
that meeting 

 Inclusion of Young 
person(s) on core 
membership 

 Member / public 
informal discussion 
session for 
questions and 
sharing experiences 
specific to the 
topic(s) discussed in 
the JOSC meeting. 
 

 Minutes published 
reflect questions 
received from public 
and responses. 

 Availability of 
minutes promoted 
via Facebook and 
Twitter. 

 
 
 
 

 

P
age 36



Appendix 2 

Venues 
 
The following table intends to provide a sample of potential venues, links to PSB theme and rationale.  It is important to note that these are examples and 
would require consideration and discussion in order to determine a complete list of appropriate venues per theme.  Appropriate venues can be selected on an 
annual basis at the same time as the Forward Work Programme is being developed. 
 

 Date/Time of 
Meeting 

Meeting Content 
(Items of Work Programme) 

Possible venues (rationale as why the venue would be 
appropriate) 

MEETING 1 22nd November 
2018 
10.00am-12 noon 
 
(Pre-meeting: 
9.30am-10.00am) 

 Update from Chair of PSB/SPB 

 Healthy Places update 

 Performance Management 
Framework 

 Options regarding venues for 
forthcoming JOSC meetings 

 

The PSB’S well-being objective reviewed at this meeting is Healthy 
Places.  With this in mind, the venue suggestions below can be seen 
to link clearly to the work being to respond to items laid down in the 
delivery plan for this objective.  

Abercynon Sports Centre: Holding the meeting in a Sports Centre 
will enable JOSC Members to view first-hand some of the options 
open to community members that would support the sustainment 
and/improvement of physical and mental wellbeing. 

Kier Hardie Health Park:  Holding the meeting at the Health Park 
offices would enable members to view the venue, the services this 
site houses (including GP clinics and other support services sited at 
the Health Park etc.) which might further develop Members 
understanding of Health practitioners and their links within a 
community surgery environment. 

Integrated Children’s Centre - ICC (either in RCT or Merthyr 
Tydfil):   Holding the meeting at an ICC will offer members an 
opportunity see community-based services and provision for children 
and families and show how these link to the PSB’s Healthy Places 
wellbeing objective. 

MEETING 2 24th January 2019 
10.00am-12 noon 
 
(Pre-meeting: 
9.30am-10.00am) 

 Update from Chairs of PSB/SPB 

 Thriving Communities 

 Cwm Taf PSB DRAFT Annual 
Report 

The PSB’S well-being objective reviewed at this meeting is Thriving 
Communities.  With this in mind, the venue suggestions below can 
be seen to link clearly to the work being to respond to items laid 
down in the delivery plan for this objective.  

Community Zone: Holding the meeting at one of the 2 PSB 
Community Zone sites (i.e. Upper Rhondda Fach or Gurnos) will 
enable JOSC Members to view firsthand some of the options open to 
community members at the Zone (e.g.) the services which 

P
age 37



communities can access via the site; the type of advice and support 
available to communities etc.  This would directly link to the Thriving 
Communities update due to be presented at the meeting. 

School Premises (to be determined by Committee):  By holding 
the meeting within a school, Members could experience firsthand the 
school environment, how technology is used to support children and 
young people to use and learn via the medium of digital technology 
etc.   

Integrated Children’s Centre - ICC (either in RCT or Merthyr 
Tydfil):   Holding the meeting at an ICC will offer members an 
opportunity see community-based services and provision for children 
and families offered via the ICC set-up; and show how these link to 
the PSB’s Thriving Communities wellbeing objective. 

MEETING 3 22nd March 2019 
10.00am-12 noon 
 
(Pre-meeting: 
9.30am-10.00am) 

 Update from Chairs of PSB/SPB 

 Strong Economy Theme 

 Tackling Loneliness and Isolation 

The PSB’S well-being objective reviewed at this meeting is Strong 
Economy.  Additionally, there will be a focus in this meeting on the 
Cross-Cutting theme of Tackling Loneliness and Isolation.  With 
this in mind, the venue suggestions below can be seen to link clearly 
to the work being to respond to items laid down in the delivery plan 
for this objective.  

Secondary School Premises (to be determined by Committee):  
By holding the meeting within a school, Members could see first-hand 
the structure and services within this environment.  This might also 
offer Members an opportunity to look at how young people are 
receiving support to move into the world of further/higher education 
and work.    

Orbit Centre:   The Orbit Centre is a venue which is familiar to 
service providers and businesses across both Merthyr Tydfil and 
RCT.  By holding the meeting at this venue, Members could see 
firsthand the facilities available to support businesses both starting-
up and existing, and through discussions could identify how the 
Centre links to other aspects of the Strong Economy theme (e.g.) the 
PSB’s step around the growth and promotion of tourism, Cwm Taf’s 
natural and built environment and its’ heritage and culture supporting 
the health and prosperity of the whole community. 

Red House, Merthyr Tydfil:   By holding a meeting at the Red 
House (Merthyr’s Old Town Hall); Members can view firsthand how a 

P
age 38



cultural asset can be used as a community hub, and the role such a 
site plays in the promotion of Cwm Taf’s rich heritage and cultural 
assets and activities. 

Community Centre:   By holding the session within a community 
centre, JOSC Members will be able to visit and establish the role the 
Centre plays within a community setting.  Evidence suggests 
community venues offer opportunities for people to meet, access 
services, take part in group activities or simply spend time with other 
people. 

 

P
age 39



 
Appendix 3 

 
Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 
 
The ‘Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015’ is about improving the social, economic, 
environmental and cultural well-being of Wales. It has seven well-being goals and tells organisations how to 
work more sustainably together to meet their duties under the Act by following 5 ways of working. 
 

 

      
 
 
 

  

 7 Well-being Goals 

 

 

 

 

 

 

GOAL Description of the goal 

A prosperous Wales An innovative, productive and low carbon society which recognises the limits of 
the global environment and therefore uses resources efficiently and 
proportionately (including acting on climate change); and which develops a skilled 
and well-educated population in an economy which generates wealth and 
provides employment opportunities, allowing people to take advantage of the 
wealth generated through securing decent work. 

A resilient Wales A nation which maintains and enhances a biodiverse natural environment with 
healthy functioning ecosystems that support social, economic and ecological 
resilience and the capacity to adapt to change (for example climate change). 

A healthier Wales A society in which people’s physical and mental well-being is maximised and in 
which choices and behaviours that benefit future health are understood. 

A more equal Wales A society that enables people to fulfil their potential no matter what their 
background or circumstances (including their socio economic background and 
circumstances). 

A Wales of cohesive 
communities 

Attractive, viable, safe and well-connected communities. 

A Wales of vibrant culture 
and thriving Welsh 
language 

A society that promotes and protects culture, heritage and the Welsh language, 
and which encourages people to participate in the arts, and sports and recreation. 

A globally responsible 
Wales 

A nation which, when doing anything to improve the economic, social, 
environmental and cultural well-being of Wales, takes account of whether doing 
such a thing may make a positive contribution to global well-being. 

Page 40



5 Ways of Working 

 
There are five things that public bodies need to think about to show that they can work together better, 

avoid repeating past mistakes and tackle some of the long-term challenges we are facing.  The five 

things are: 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



Cwm Taf Public Services Board Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
Work Programme Descriptors 2018/19 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

 
 

  

Date / Timing Overarching Item Officer / PSB 
Member  

Scrutiny Focus  Time allocated 

6th September 
2018 
 
10am-12 noon 

Progress Updates on Public 
Services Board (PSB) and 
Strategic Partnership Board 
(SPB) 

Prof. Marcus 
Longley (Chair of 
Cwm Taf PSB) &  
Kelechi Nnoaham 
(Chair of Cwm Taf 
SPB) 

Scrutiny and Challenge:  The Chairs of Cwm Taf Public Services Board 

and Strategic Partnership Board will offer an update report on all 

progress made following publication of “Our Cwm Taf”, the PSB’s Well-

being Plan.  Members will review and discuss the content of the report 

and identify the next steps to be taken to support further progress 

15 minutes 

Review of Thematic 
Delivery Plans relating to 
‘Our Cwm Taf’ 

Paul Mee 
Chris Hole 
Angela Jones 
Ellis Cooper 
Alyn Owen 
Ian Davy 

Scrutiny and Challenge:  Committee Members will consider to the 

delivery plans for the 4 themed areas of the PSB’s Well-being Plan and 

discuss the proposed scrutiny arrangements to be put in place in 

respect of these.  Members will consider whether they need to look at 

each theme individually and invite the respective lead officer to attend 

the JOSC meeting together with the PSB Chair (who would present the 

item) 

60 minutes 

Development of Joint 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Work Programme 

Committee Chair – 
Cllr Tanya Skinner 

Scrutiny and Challenge:  The Committee will review and discuss a draft 

work programme as prepared by a Task and Finish Group.  Members 

will consider whether the draft work programme covers all areas which 

they are required to maintain an overview of and recommend 

amendments (if required). 

 

20 minutes 

Confirmation of proposed 
schedule of dates for Cwm 
Taf JOSC meetings 

Committee Chair – 
Cllr Tanya Skinner 

Scrutiny and Challenge:  Members will consider the dates of future 

JOSC meetings and confirm a schedule which will take them to the end 

of the current civic year.   

10 mins 

 

P
age 43

A
genda Item

 7



Cwm Taf Public Services Board Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
Work Programme Descriptors 2018/19 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

  

22nd November  
2018 

Progress Updates on Public 
Services Board (PSB) and 
Strategic Partnership Board 
(SPB) 

Prof. Marcus 
Longley (Chair of 
Cwm Taf PSB) &  
Kelechi Nnoaham 
(Chair of Cwm Taf 
SPB) 

Scrutiny and Challenge:  The Chairs of Cwm Taf Public Services Board 

and Strategic Partnership Board will offer an update report on all 

progress made following publication of “Our Cwm Taf”, the PSB’s Well-

being Plan.   

20 minutes 

Update on the ‘Healthy 
People’ objective 

Angela Jones 
(Public Health 
Wales) 

Scrutiny and Challenge:  The Lead Officer for this objective will offer 
Members an update on the progress made to date in relation to this 
objective within the ‘Our Cwm Taf’ Wellbeing Plan.  Members will have 
an opportunity to review and directly question the Lead on any issues 
identified. 

60 minutes 

Performance Management 
Framework 

Kelly Wells (PSB 
Support Team 
Manager) 

Scrutiny and Challenge:  Committee Members receive an update on the 
development of the Performance Management Framework which will 
be used to determine the impact of the work being undertaken in direct 
response to the PSB’s wellbeing objectives 

 

Cwm Taf JOSC – Venue 
Options Report 

TBC Scrutiny and Challenge:  Arising from the Committee Meeting held on 
06.09.2018; Members will receive a report outlining options for the 
siting of future meetings of Cwm Taf PSB JOSC and will be required to 
agree their preferred option. 

15 minutes 

24th January 
2019 

Progress Updates on Public 
Services Board (PSB) and 
Strategic Partnership Board 
(SPB) 

Prof. Marcus 
Longley (Chair of 
Cwm Taf PSB) &  
Kelechi Nnoaham 
(Chair of Cwm Taf 
SPB) 

Scrutiny and Challenge:  The Chairs of Cwm Taf Public Services Board 

and Strategic Partnership Board will offer an update report on all 

progress made following publication of “Our Cwm Taf”, the PSB’s Well-

being Plan.   

20 minutes 

Update on the ‘Thriving 
Communities’ objective 

Paul Mee & Chris 
Hole 

Scrutiny and Challenge:  The Lead Officer(s) for this objective will offer 
Members an update on the progress made to date in relation to this 
objective within the ‘Our Cwm Taf’ Wellbeing Plan.  Members will have 
an opportunity to review and directly question the Lead(s) on any issues 
identified. 

45 minutes 

Cwm Taf PSB Draft Annual 
Report 

TBC Scrutiny and Challenge:  Committee Members will review and 
scrutinise the draft Annual Report produced by Cwm Taf PSB. 

45 minutes 

P
age 44



Cwm Taf Public Services Board Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
Work Programme Descriptors 2018/19 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

22nd March 
2019 

Progress Updates on Public 
Services Board (PSB) and 
Strategic Partnership Board 
(SPB) 

Prof. Marcus 
Longley (Chair of 
Cwm Taf PSB) &  
Kelechi Nnoaham 
(Chair of Cwm Taf 
SPB) 

Scrutiny and Challenge:  The Chairs of Cwm Taf Public Services Board 

and Strategic Partnership Board will offer an update report on all 

progress made following publication of “Our Cwm Taf”, the PSB’s Well-

being Plan.   

15 minutes 

Update on the ‘Strong 
Economy’ objective 

Alyn Owen Scrutiny and Challenge:   The Lead Officer for this objective will offer 
Members an update on the progress made to date in relation to this 
objective within the ‘Our Cwm Taf’ Wellbeing Plan.  Members will have 
an opportunity to review and directly question the Lead on any issues 
identified. 

45 minutes 

Update on the ‘Tackling 
Loneliness and Isolation’ 
cross cutting objective 

Simon James Scrutiny and Challenge:   The Lead Officer for this objective will offer 
Members an update on the progress made to date in relation to this 
objective within the ‘Our Cwm Taf’ Wellbeing Plan.  Members will have 
an opportunity to review and directly question the Lead on any issues 
identified. 

45 minutes 

 
Additional items to consider for Work Programme 

 

Date to be 
confirmed 
 

  

Date to be 
confirmed 
 

  

P
age 45



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3a 26/02/2018
	3b 06/09/2018
	5 Thriving Communities
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 1_SPBNOV18_4i_Thriving Communities_Nov18
	4.1bSPBNOV18_4iAppendix 1_Thriving Communities
	4.1cSPBNOV18_4iAppendix2_Thriving Communities


	6 Cwm Taf JOSC - Report on Future Venues, Communication and Engagement
	7 Work Programme 2018/19

